



Looking Ahead...

Original Scripts for KS3 Drama

zigzageducation.co.uk

P(0)D) 11023

Publish your own work... Write to a brief... Register at publishmenow.co.uk

⁴ Follow us on Twitter **@ZigZagDrama**

Contents

Product Support from ZigZag Education	
Terms and Conditions of Use	
Teacher's Introduction	
Scripts	
1. Think before You Tweet	
2. Kicking the Habit	
3. Taking back Control	14
4. Living with Fear	21
5. Another World – Next Door	
6. Kicking down the Door	31
7. Picking up the Pieces	35
8. Taking It Seriously	41
9. Changing the World	50
10. Teaching the Truth	55
Tasks	60
Notes on Sources	55

Teacher's Introduction

What kind of plays?

Looking Ahead is a set of short plays, each of which can be read aloud or performed in 10 minutes. Each play deals with an important current issue, such as social media, knife crime or climate change. The main aim is to explore interest in these issues, and to encourage pupils to develop their own responses, through improvisation and in their own writing.

The plays vary in the extent to which they are suited for dramatic performance:

- Nos. 3, 5 and 8 are most suited to dramatic staging.
- Nos. 2, 6 and 9, are closer to a kind of video documentary, containing a mixture of dialogue and reporting.
- Nos. 1, 4, 7 and 10 consist mainly of talk rather than action, exploring different points of view towards the issues raised.

There are stage directions in each of the texts, and some tasks which directly encourage pupils to consider such aspects as action, movement, lighting and costume.

Topical topics

These plays are based on detailed information, and the notes provide sources if there is a need to research further. The texts were written in January 2020 and revised in September 2020. There is scope for teachers and pupils to carry out their own research into recent developments in penal policy, for example, or immigration or social media, and incorporate them into these activities.

Different views

A key aim of this pack is to develop an awareness of what's involved in considering these issues, through grasping a range of viewpoints. The different ways in which various characters view the same situation is a key part of this learning, and students should be reading and discussing together, in small groups and as a whole class, as well as working on their own.

Tasks

Pupils are most likely to be engaged in this work if they have some scope to make their own decisions — rehearsing a performance, presenting their own proposals, or improvising or writing a scene which involves varied characters. There are a lot of possibilities here — the task could be spoken or written, in small groups or by the class as a whole. There isn't a specific order in which to complete these activities. There are opportunities for reflection and discussion, and rehearsal and creation, and only the teacher can decide which route suits the time available and the needs of their class.

A footnote on Covid-19

These plays were written in January 2020, after a decisive election ended an eventful year. It seemed a good time to be encouraging pupils to think about the future, hence 'Looking Ahead.' Since then we've had a global pandemic, which in one sense changes everything. But these issues remain important, and I've resisted the temptation to revise the plays in the light of the pandemic.

Note: sensitive contents

Sensitivity in teaching this resource is important as it deals with very sensitive content that may be upsetting or difficult for some students. It is vital that the teacher checks any content carefully beforehand to judge its suitability for their class. In particular, the fictional scripts discuss topical themes that may upset some students, such as racism, online abuse, drug addiction, knife crime and terrorism. These fictional scenarios are the author's own interpretation of a certain idea or concept and do not reflect the views of ZigZag Education. Please ensure that the scripts are viewed, along with any additional content you intend to use, before using them in class.

Note: Topical Issues

In dealing with topical issues, there's the risk that you quickly get out of date. When I wrote 'Think before you tweet', the most recent online controversy involving a well-known footballer concerned Bernardo Silva, in November 2019. Now I'm revising this pack, the most recent is Edinson Cavani, in November 2020. By the time you read this, there could be someone else. For your classroom treatment to be up to date, you may need to add your own updates to this material.

June 2021

1. Think before You Tw

Cast

- Karen (physiotherapist at a football club)
- Ashley (young footballer)
- Jack (young footballer)
- Mason (young footballer)
- Wayne (young footballer)
- Nasreen (visiting expert on social media)

A seminar room in a football team's training covered by Jack, Ashley and Wayne standing arc and Na Son comes in.

COPYRIGHT PROTECTED

Zig Zag Education

JACK: Is this a physio session?

KAREN: Morning, lads.

KAREN: Oh no. Notim

MASON:

KAREN Social media training.

MASON:You are kidding me. We know more about that

sc...vnat's going on?

KAREN: Agreed.

WAYNE: And the boss is even worse. He keeps getting me he just can't get the hang of it.

COPYRIGHT PROTECTED

KAREN: And that's true, too. Which is why we've called JACK: You've got someone in to show us how to use o KAREN: Not quite. Someone to help you think more clear (NASREEN enters.) KAREN: And here she is. Nasreen? NASREEN: Karen, right? KAREN: Pleased to meet you and these are Jack, Mason NASREEN: See Susreen. Good morning. Please sit down. (She remain ling as the boys sit down and Karen takes a seat at the back.) **WAYNE**: OK, Karen. We're good. We'll take it from here. KAREN: I don't think so. MASON: You're not scared we might misbehave?

JACK: You're reporting back to the boss?

WAYNE: Like a spy, right? (They look at her, but Karen d

NASREEN: We need to make a start. So I'll make this clear. to run this session on behalf of the club. He thin place, and he'll need to know what went on. So I'm running the session, and from now on if you

you should talk to. I'll start by asking – why do w

JACK: He's not keen on social media. He reckons it get talking to each other.

KAREN: And maybe he could have a limit.

MASON: And maybe າ, ເກສt's what someone your a

🖔 really. It's not as though going on Twitter n WAYNE:

...... You're sure about that?

WAYNE: It's common sense.

NASREEN: So it's worth testing, right? Scientists in Brazil d footballers to play FIFA or go online before play was a negative effect – online activity affected concentrate, how clearly they picked up details ASHLEY: Was that because of online comments – getting

NASREEN: That's part of it. But not all. Just the fact of being in your head, could actually affect the way the book do it just before an actual match. But that's not

Think about the social context. You've heard of

WAYNE: You might need to explain that to Ashley.

ASHLEY: I know what sexting is.

NASREEN:OK. How many child () er 14 do you think h

police for similar

MASON: Logie on. Who'd shop a kid for a cheeky photo?

JACK: Speak for yourself.

WAYNE: Yeah, right. Don't tell me you and Jackie don't p

KAREN: That's enough of the banter, Wayne.

NASREEN: Nobody's answered my question.

ASHLEY: What was the question again?

NASREEN: How many children under 14 have been reported

JACK: Oh, 20?

MASON: How about 100?

NASREEN: How about 6,000, in three years?

JACK: You're serious?

NASREEN: Absolutely.

ASHLEY: And that's bad?

WAYNE: المنظمة ا

widespread. If a lot of young people are in the his pictures and sending them to each other, that's

JACK: Why is it a risk?

NASREEN: Because people fall out. They make jokes, they hurt. And when you want to fight back, you've

can put online.



MASON: Has this happened to you?

NASREEN: Not yet. I work quite hard to make sure it doesn

But if any of you lads really make it in football, y

private parts plastered across social media.

WAYNE: I'll be OK. I'll have my England cap by then.

NASREEN: And you think that will protect you?

WAYNE: I'll be able to do what I want

NASREEN: Not quite and and footballer, with 1

spark. Fe പ്രശ്യോഗ് years for grooming a 15-year-യ

ASHLI is that true?

KAREN: You think she's making it up?

MASON: What's that got to do with us?

NASREEN: Part of the evidence which got him convicted w

girl.

WAYNE: He's an idiot. Should have wiped them.

MASON: But the police can still find them, yeah?

JACK: Is it anyone we'd have heard of?

NASREEN: Maybe not. Because he hasn't been on the back

been sitting in a cell wondering why he was so

JACK: But if we stay away from girl fans, we'll be OK?

NASREEN: Not necessarily. Have a look through Google so

Twitter. It's not a happy story. A guy who says his new car, or a row of the sial comment. The swore blind the hall discuss go in the goal, but the did. The line of many ways of ways of getting

JACK:

heard about this Man U player who opened a without putting out a tweet. He couldn't cope with the cope with the cope with the couldn't cope with the cop

WAYNE: Twitter's not for wimps.

NASREEN:You don't think online abuse is a problem?

WAYNE: I didn't say that.

ASHLEY: I heard about Bernardo Silva.



NASREEN: Go on.

ASHLEY: Didn't he get done for making a joke with his m

MASON: Mendy. Also of Man City.

JACK: What sort of joke?

NASREEN: Well, that's the point. He compared Mendy to a

sweets firm, Conguitos. But the mascot's made o

WAYNE: Silva isn't racist. He' of ting at Mendy beca

NASREEN:You' ലി ു പ്രണർ the club recognised that.

NASREEN: Depends what you mean by OK. He gets fined £

one game.

WAYNE: That's crazy.

JACK: It seems harsh. Just for a joke between friends.

NASREEN: It would be, if it were just between friends. But

access to 600,000 people. That's what makes the because he thinks he's on home ground, it's all out there can read it differently. You need to the

MASON: I'll say.

NASREEN: In a minute I'll stop, and you can ask any questi

more story for you to think about, and this one

WAYNE: Fine. He got what was coming to him.

ASHLEY: That's not fair.

WAYNE: You like referee con' مراكب Ashley?

wask Well, you can each decide for yourselves. This re on social media. A journalist wrote that he was were worse as a result. It's his daughter's sports grief from parents about whether or not he'll co

- that kind of thing.

MASON: So what's the problem?



NASREEN: There's a disabled guy walking in front of his callit to a friend saying, 'I reckon I might have a charge

WAYNE: And that's it?

JACK: You think that's Ok?

WAYNE: It's not nice, but it's no big deal.

MASON: Why did you tell us this?

NASREEN:I haven't finished the sory The friend is a bit method referee as a carlier. He puts the message to the referee's board. They look at it, and he's been reffing since he was 15, he loves it are

he's told he can't do it any more.

JACK: That's ridiculous.

MASON: Wait a minute. You said with the Silva one what

went to lots of people. Was this a WhatsApp gr

NASREEN: No. Just one friend. As it happened, the wrong f

ASHLEY: That is so cruel.

WAYNE: No it's not. He had it coming. Think before you

NASREEN: What did you say?

WAYNE: (Mumbling.) Think before you tweet.

NASREEN: Sorry, I'm not sure everyone caught that. Again

WAYNE: What are you getting at?

NASREEN: Again?

WAYNE: (Shouting.) Thin' b for you tweet.

NASREEN:k july, Wayne. I think my work is done. Que





2. Kicking the Habit

Cast

- John Marks (a new doctor)
- Sheila (a receptionist at the surgery)
- Sydney (a patient)
- **Denise Newcombe** (another doctor)
- Julia (a patient)
- Asya (an interviewer)
- **Neil** (an ex-policeman, and author of a book ahc......ugs)

Scene 1: Widnes, 1982

(Sheila is showing Dr John !)

....... Well, Dr Marks, is there anything else I need to

JOHN: I don't think so, thanks. You've been very kind.

SHEILA: Some people are very rude about Widnes. It's n built ships here. But there's some good people. said you should take over the addicts.

JOHN: Addicts. You mean drug addicts?

SHEILA: Yes. Heroin, mostly.

JOHN: Is that legal?

SHEILA: Apparently. The Americans tried to ban it all over little loophole, and we have a small group – abo They pick up their prescriptions and go on their

JOHN: It's not something I'm that keen on.

SHEILA: Well, see how you feel when you've met them.

Scene 2: Consulting room

(John and Sydney are sitting facing each other

Men, Sydney. What seems to be the matt

..... Just the usual, please, doctor. I have a heroin pr

JOHN: How long have you had that?

SYDNEY: About 20 years now.

JOHN: You don't think you should be giving that up?

SYDNEY: You think it's that easy?



JOHN: Have you tried to give it up?

SYDNEY: Doctor, you're wasting your time. You think the

I need, and it keeps me healthy.

JOHN: Well, yes. You do seem...

SYDNEY: Almost normal, right? I haven't robbed anyone

a joke, right?

JOHN:What did you do when you lead?

SYDNEY: I was a doc'ar Liverpool. Now that was tough

snor a time with the kids.

So... normal family life... everything fine?

SYDNEY: Yes, doctor. But I still need the heroin.

JOHN: Very well. (Writes the prescription.) Here. (Hands it

(As SYDNEY leaves, SHEILA comes in.)

SHEILA: Sorry to bother you, Doctor, but I thought you a

government regulations.

JOHN:(Reads through.) Well. Now that is a coincidence

SHEILA: How do you mean?

JOHN: To be honest, I wanted to close down this heroil

have to have an anti-drugs policy. Not just that, analysis to see whether it's working. It'd be a w new, so we might as well keep it for now. Is the

check it over for us?

SHEILA: Dr Newcombe knows about the programme, an

ask her?

JOHN:Thanks of the con-





Scene 3

(Two weeks later, in Dr Marks' office. He's at his desk, when Denise Newcombe co

DENISE:John, would this be a good time to report back?

JOHN: Yes, please.

DENISE: I think you may be a bit surprised.

JOHN: Go on.

DENISE: Well, you know the இது சில் இத்த of heroin addie

unemploya' 's 'gh Leath rate.

JOHN:

.... This group is nothing like that. They're all very h

alongside other patients, no one could tell the

JOHN: Really?

DENISE: This is a port area. You'd expect HIV, a high rate

You'd expect overdoses, abscesses, disease. Mc

and lead normal lives.

JOHN: Wow.

DENISE: And that's not all. Have you noticed their skin?

JOHN:'m sorry?

DENISE: When you say 'heroin addict' you think scabs an

of pizza.

JOHN: I suppose so, yes.

DENISE: Theirs is nothing like that. And it makes sense, i

we've used heroin in hospilli. Not often, but w none of those sympton alone risks come in with to make a present of they mix it up - brick do ್ಲಿ ್ಲಿ carafind. It's not the heroin that kills the ac

do with it.

....... That's really interesting.

you to think again. You've got something very s

shame to lose it.



Scene 4: John's consulting room, three months later

(John signs a prescription and hands it over.)

JULIA: Thank you, Doctor, thank you so much. You've

really.

JOHN: Well, don't be too hasty -

SHEILA: Well, you've certainly made halfa's day.

JOHN: I thought e ്ലൂട് ് നൂട്ട് programme would be a

woulars ການຂອງ popular. She's talking of packing 🛚

JOHN: You don't think it's a risk?

SHEILA: Not as big a risk as keeping working. She's a sex

JOHN: Oh. Right.

SHEILA: If she gets her heroin from dealers, she has to d

you supply her, she doesn't. It's as simple as that

Inspector Lofts wants to see you.

JOHN: Am I in trouble?

SHEILA: He didn't say. Do you want to make a run for it

Do sit down. (Inspector sits.) What can I do for you

LOFTS: I wanted to talk about your heroin scheme.

JOHN:Yes. Well, I can see it may look unusual, but I do

for a while yet -

LOFTS: I disagra

JOHN: Sorry

LOFTS: You should keep it going for ever. There's a mass

burglary. Addicts who used to look wild and threabiling citizens, and the dealers have lost interest.

telling my bosses that this is the best thing since

JOHN: Oh. Right. That's really good to hear.



Scene 5

SHEILA:(Spotlit, speaks to audience.) And it was. The sche papers got interested and the story spread. The worried, because it didn't fit with their idea of t the British government to close it down. Dr Ma moved to New Zealand.

Over 13 years, from 1982 to 1995, Dr Marks ne among his patients. After the scheme was close were dead within six month and 41 within two Julia. Many others and raised serious illnesses.

Scene 6: A TV studio in the state (Asya inten N = Lorn sitting.

ASYA: And in the studio today we have Neil Woods, w

his life as an undercover cop. Hello, Neil, and w

NEIL: Thank you.

ASYA: You certainly seem to have had an exciting time

true that at one time you had a samurai sword

NEIL: That's right. But things are quieter now.

ASYA: Your book's title is Good Cop, Bad War. Could y

mean by that?

NEIL: We've got this idea, from the US, that dealing will

with the drug gangs. Infiltrate them, attack them

ASYA: But you spent 14 years doing that.

NEIL: I did, and I was good at it. That's how I know it

waste of time.

ASYA: Really?

u ಇದ್ದಿಗೆ up the sentences of people I got arre

over 1,000 years in prison.

...... That must have made a difference.

NEIL: It did to the men. It didn't to the trade. Those the

slowed the trade down by about 10 minutes at up like that, while it makes that much money, t

ready to move in.

ASYA: So what's the answer?



NEIL: The answer is to treat drugs as a health issue, no Take out the criminal bit and treat the medical necessity.

ASYA: Has anyone tried doing that?

NEIL: It's being done in Switzerland, Portugal and Uru took place in the UK, in Widnes, between 1982

ASYA: Is that true?

ASYA:land ar inow do you plan to do that?

ASYA: But that's not what we hear on the news.

NEIL: People are scared of saying this, because they'll people who sound tough who cause the damage going, of arrests, violence and death from drugs this. How do we know? Because John Marks shows the saying this people are scared of saying this, because they'll people are scared of saying this, because they are scared of saying this, because they are scared of saying this people are scared of sayi



3. Taking back Contro

Cast

- Colm (senior case officer at the Home Office)
- Mark (junior Home Office officer)
- Meera (junior Home Office officer)
- Phil (junior Home Office officer)
- Janine (supervisor)
- Sally (reporter)

Scene 1

(An office at the Home Office. Meera Meera Working at desks as COLM comes)

kids, how are we doing?

...... We're coping, thanks, Colm.

MEERA: Why are you always so cheerful?

COLM: Maybe it's just my sunny nature. Or it could be

I've just been to see Janine.

MEERA: That's a good thing?

MARK:'ll tell her you said that.

MEERA: You'd better not.

COLM: Children, children. You need to stop that, because the New Year, you will be looking after yourselv

far away.

MEERA: You're joking?

MARK: You're retiring?

COLM:Correct. The time has fine of come, and I'm on r

MARK: Congatili

.... Well, thank you. Though I'm guessing it'll also b Step up the ladder?

MEERA: But they'll replace you, won't they? I mean, son

COLM: Don't bet on it. Very expensive, us old men. Mu keen young whippersnapper. Like Mark. Hardly

and he could run the place next year.

MARK: Not that soon.



COLM: But some day, yeah? It's nothing to be ashamed remember when I started, just an immigrant my

MEERA: Yeah, right.

COLM: You think I'm kidding you. They had signs, those d

MEERA: And you think it's the same? The Irish and the P

COLM: None of us were welcome, I can tell you that.

MEERA: But nobody just loc ്രച്ച മ പ്രാധ and said, 'Go hor

COLM:You'er ു வெt they did when I opened my mo

MARK And they didn't have to wait long for that, I'll be

MEERA: You don't get it, do you?

COLM: You're right, Meera. There is a difference. And t

here. I mean that.

MEERA: Thanks. My dad's very proud.

MARK: So she's better than us?

COLM:lt's not a competition. She's part of the team. A

what it's like on both sides of the desk. When we white public schoolboys making all the rules. No

MEERA: The good old days, right?

COLM: Things have changed. Like they have here. Whe

professional standards, personal judgement. No software sorted, the algorithms will do it all for

people at all.

MEERA: Stop messing, Colm. This is an ortant.

COLM: I know it go go change, whether I stay or no

Sith Shil?

MARK He went out, 20 minutes ago.

COLM: That's why I'm asking. When I came out from se

go in.

MEERA: You think he's in trouble?

MARK: Think about it. Phil talking to Janine. Do you this

looking forward to that?



Scene 2

(A separate office in the same building. Janine is busy working behind her desk. Pl

JANINE: Phil, what can I do for you?

PHIL: Um...well, you know the initiative thing ... that p

JANINE: Yes?

PHIL: I don't know if this is important, but...

JANINE: I don't have all day are do you. You need to

your desk.

PHIL: JC Ty. Well... Panorama, last night.

JANIN I didn't think your generation watched the BBC

PHIL: My grandad does. I was visiting him.

JANINE: And?

PHIL: It was about this racket. Indian students cheating

so that they could stay in the country.

JANINE: Really?

PHIL: I knew I shouldn't have bothered. I'll get back...

JANINE: No, Phil. I am interested. Really interested. This

wanted to encourage.

PHIL: So I was right to come.

JANINE: Absolutely. Thank you. And now you can get ba

Scene 3

(A quiet part of a pub. Colm is sitting, as SALLY waks and swith their drinks.)

SALLY: The Exclusion One pint of Guinness. (She sits.)

COLM Thanks, Sally. Very generous.

SALLY: No problem. It's a big day. But I'll miss you.

COLM: All those hot inside tips, eh?

SALLY: What about your colleagues? Should I chat up a



COLM: I don't think so. I mean, they're kids, really. Thin

You and I built up this ... um ... understanding be

wouldn't have started it after she came.

SALLY: You're not feeling guilty?

COLM: No way. It's important you understand how thin

full picture, right?

SALLY: Of course. I appreciate it.

COLM:lt's worked well. But is อเมก't nave lasted. Even

this thing all e will being a place of refuge, tr

SALLY: re interabout it. Every Home Office release, the

COLM. Yeah. Well, since the Brexit vote I think you can

targets, send them all home.

SALLY: And I can quote you on that?

COLM: Definitely not. I'm going, but I'll need my pension

SALLY: Just kidding, Colm. I've never shopped you yet,

Scene 4

(Six months later. A press conference, with Janine in charge.)

JANINE: So although we're facing serious challenges, I'm

with the help of new technology we'll be able to we've made since the Brexit result. Any question

SALLY: Could you give us a few more details about the

JANINE: I'm not sure what you mean?

SALLY: I understand from Homa (ಇತ್ತುತ್ತಿ) staff that they h

meet, numbers of this case from foreign countries

JANINE: Spat true. Could I ask for the names of peo

SALLY No, I'm afraid that's not possible.

JANINE: As I thought, this is just a rumour. There are no great pride in its tradition of treating each case



Scene 5

(The same day. Mark, Phil and Meera at their desks, with large piles of paperwork.)

MEERA: I could do with a Colm joke right now.

MARK: You always said they were corny.

MEERA: They were. But I still miss them. And him.

PHIL: Me too. When a tricky case came up, you could

like it – or he'd tell you about some mistake he's

feel better.

MARK: Ang เพียง และอีซ hands would help. Mind you, I'd

ൃധ്യാഗ്motion by now.

PHIL:Leave it, Mark.

MEERA: What are you taking about?

MARK: Hasn't he told you?

PHIL: He's just messing.

MARK: No I'm not. You know the big new idea – the ch

MEERA: Yeah. Course. It's crazy.

MARK: Maybe. But guess who started it all?

MEERA: Phil? How could he do that?

PHIL: There was this programme on telly. About how

MEERA: Yeah, I heard.

PHIL: Well, I told Janine. That's all.

MARK: Didn't get much thenk fort, mind.

PHIL: How d'you mean?

MEERA: My cousin was detained. As in, locked up. His fi

with his parents. His dad told him not to come him nocence. He's talking suicide. Do you know how

by this?



MARK: It's big. Thousands.

PHIL: Don't be daft. This programme was just about a

MEERA: Maybe. But it didn't stay that way. Thirty thous

cheating. Ten thousand left the country.

PHIL: That's crazy. The programme was about 20 or s

MEERA: That's all they needed. An excuse.

PHIL: But they must have jucke into it.

MEERA: Thir y tip sould cases? With staffing the way it

ે ાં em 97% of the students who took that test

t̃hat's likely?

MARK: Phil couldn't be expected to know that would h

MEERA: Maybe he thinks before he opens his mouth ne

MARK: It might not be his fault. Janine could have got i

an official secret. (PHIL gets up, goes.) Phil, it's not a big deal.

MEERA: You think?

MARK: Well, obviously it's a big deal to the people affe

MEERA: But they're not your people, are they? They jus

maybe it makes a difference to me -

MARK: Look, Meera, I'm really sorry.

MEERA: Forget it. We've work to do. More than enough

MARK: Meera -

MEERA: I don't you't to about it.





Scene 6

(Janine's office. PHIL knocks on the door.)

JANINE: Yes?

PHIL: Can I speak to you?

JANINE:l've got a lot on, but all right, if it's quick.

(She hardly looks up. He walks in, hesitates, decides to sit down.)

PHIL: When I came before

JANINE:Yes, المحافظة على المحافظة yanine:Yes المحافظة المحافظ

JANINE: Not your problem.

PHIL: But if it was my fault -

JANINE: It was a TV programme. You passed on information

story. Unless -

PHIL: Yes?

JANINE: A reporter from the local rag was asking me about

said she got that from somebody working here.

be you?

PHIL: No. No, of course not.

JANINE: Any idea who it might be?

PHIL: No. Not Meera. And certainly not Mark. Really,

JANINE: Fine. So we can both get to keep work.

PHIL: But -

JANINE

Dien't I make myself clear? (Fade.)



4. Living with Fear

Cast

Local residents at a meeting:

- Ruth (chair)
- Sadia (Somalian refugee)
- Pauline (volunteer at youth club)
- Conor (local councillor)
- Mick (teenager)
- Terry (policeman)
- Marlon (ex gang member, film-maker)

(A community hall in East ! c

Rations at a table, facing them.)



.. Good evening, and thanks so much for coming. business of the evening is to celebrate our local wonderful film (Enthusiastic cheers.)

But it's also to share our worries about knife cristhis area. Sadia, do you want to start?

SADIA:(Stands) OK. Some of you know me. I'm from Some refugees, to keep our children safe. Last week I Somalia. He begged me to send him — 'Mum, I'm They know where we live.'

RUTH: How did he know these people?

SADIA:They kidnapped him. I'm not joking. He was her were trying to trace him through his phone. The him sell drugs and carry a knife. He was so scare his hand.)

RUTH: Mr O'Leary?

CONOR: Thank you. (He stands.) Conor @'Leary, local cou

statement of the problem and it makes it all the solution. Obviously, we need more police officer priscussive sees. If you look at the figures, half a memave previous convictions for carrying knieds.

RUTH: So whatever we did last time, it didn't work?

CONOR: We didn't do enough. We need to hit them hare carrying knives need to know that they're much and that they'll go to prison for longer.

(He sits, and looks around. Some murmurs of support. Pauline stands.)

RUTH: Yes?



PAULINE: My name's Pauline. I used to be a social worker. youth club. Just making teas and coffees, helpir a stabbing that didn't take place. It was last we youth club. We had a lot of kids in, nothing spe rumour. People have seen kids from Hackney of patch, and they're thinking they need to get ou have another think. They're in the youth club, a We're really strict about this, and they know it. and they go back to the table tennis, the art wo they all stay alive.

RUTH: I didn't know there we'le by youth clubs still go

PAULINE: That is a literal way. Oh, yes, I've just remembered

ച് ്രാഗ് years ago, when we had our own worksh stuff, set them for jobs. We had a gang who'd b fight where a kids got killed. Our project was to up for earning a living, so they wouldn't go back

CONOR: And did that work?

PAULINE: For some of them, certainly.

RUTH: But we've had council cuts since then. The mon

(Looks out at audience. Cal stands.) Yes? I'm sorry.

CAL: No, you don't know me. And you don't have a c I saw three people stabbed while I was growing hall, I saw someone I knew get his face carved.

RUTH: What do you think the problem is?

CAL: It starts with defence. There's some psychopatr

people in gangs are normal. They have morals, themselves. But if someone knows where you li wait for them to arrive. You get in first. You've

been warned off, but he didn't listen. So this gu

RUTH: That sounds like a life?utlook.

ലൂടെ wrong. I don't see any answers. It's 🛭

anight move a sofa over it, but it's not going to with it. (He storms out of the hall, slams the door.)

RUTH: And thank you. But it's not the last word, and w answers. Terry, did you want to come in?



RUTH: What about what Sadia said?

sp _auing fear.

RUTH: And what would your answer be?

TERRY: It's like a business, so we've got to be organised

we can stop it.

CONOR: It's not that complicated. You need more bobbi

TERRY:OK, we've lost 20,000 officers, and that's bound

getting more officers and stopping and searching the solution. We used to stop thousands of kids

trouble than it was worth.

MARLON:(Standing.) Because it was always the same sort

kids, the kids in care, the kids excluded from sch are scared they're going to be attacked. They're choose, because they know they're easy to push

RUTH: So maybe this is the right time to introduce Ma

here, and he won't mind me saying that as a yo

he wasn't exactly a model pupil.

MARLON: That's right. I came from a shi stian family, I play

grammar school – luf sizet didn't last. I got expe another zoon and then to a secure unit. That's

െ ൃദ്ധ go when everyone's given up on you

RUTH So what did you do?

MARLON: I became a roadman. I dealt heroin and crack to

gang, but I did get stabbed. Seven times – chest this nightclub, and there were a gang of lads, an started attacking me, and it was only when the

realised I'd been stabbed.

RUTH: So what happened then?



MARLON:I wasn't sure that I'd ever see my family again. In that I would try to help young people who might crime. That's why I'm here, doing this. When I we model, somebody like me that I could relate to. I

can tell these kids – I've been in your shoes. I kno

RUTH: And do you have anything to say to their parent

MARLON: It's about learning a bit more from your kids, an shouldn't be about how it was then, and why an

we used to be. Times have all inged.

RUTH: And what's you me sage to the kids themselves

MARLON: ..

easier said than done. It's easy to say, 'Put the k stop.' In actual every day it's very difficult to say it but the other side isn't going to. So if you can first place, that's much better than getting invo

PAULINE: What about the council? And the government?

MARLON: They're thinking headlines, numbers. Pick up the need to get the whole picture. What's life like for got to look forward to? There's a whole lot of the about – schools, youth clubs, prisons, probation.

agencies, working together. Not just a quick fix.

many people as you like. You can throw away th

won't solve the problem.'

CONOR: Wait a minute, Ruth. You've just dismissed the know a lot of voters agree in me. Are you say.

your friend disagre is with us?

RUTH: it lecause she's my friend. It's because she watching kids being killed. She's just looking for

watching kids being killed. She's just looking for Medics Against Violence in Scotland has been a

for yourself. So, Marlon, where does your film f

MARLON: OK. We have to do stuff – make decisions, spen work. But we also have to tell stories. Not just to innocent kid who got killed by accident. There's

amazing things, who started off badly but then
That's what my film is about. See what you thin

his film.)



5. Another World – Next

Cast

- Karim and Anita (a couple living on a housing estate)
- Mr Harris (manager for Windsor Estates)
- Chris (repo
- Roberto ans Windsor Tes

Scene 1

(Karim and Anita in their flat.)

KARIM: Is Ahmed asleep?

ANITA:Yealway\alleaser seen him so happy.

ANITA: Playing football. With Pedro and his mates.

KARIM: Where did they go?

ANITA: On the playground. In front of the flats.

KARIM: The posh flats. Windsor Terrace?

ANITA: That's the one.

KARIM: Are you crazy?

ANITA: No, Karim. I'm not crazy.

KARIM: But you know... we tried to, when we first came

cried so much...

ANITA: And you thought I'd forgotten that?

KARIM: Of course not. But...

ANITA: You know his friend Pedro

KARIM: Little fell is Somely winger with the deadly shot

ANITA:

້ງ ເວັບ say so. Well, his mum let us in. I was as sc says, 'No, come on. We should share this.'

KARIM: Why would she do that?

ANITA: You think she was wrong?

want to keep things to yourself.

ANITA: Look, Ahmed had a great time. So just enjoy it,



Scene 2

(The offices of Windsor Estates. Chris is interviewing Mr Harris.)

CHRIS:So, Mr Harris, you're the manager for Windsor

HARRIS: That's correct.

CHRIS: So you know that people are worried about the

HARRIS: I'm not sure about that. Gossip and rumour, ma

CHRIS: But this used to be ുയ ന്നു ട്രീn, didn't it? It was a

people in the 3.

HARRIS:

್ ಾ ್ ಕರ್ಟಿ you about its history. All I know is the residents have paid a lot of money to occupy the And that's why they're the only ones allowed to

CHRIS: But there is social housing which also overlooks

look at the land, but they're not allowed to use

HARRIS: And that's for the very good reason that they have

maintain it.

CHRIS: So there are children who go to the same school

but they're not allowed to play football togethe

HARRIS: That might be sad, but it's not my problem.

Scene 3

(Windsor Terrace, in Roberto and Joanna's sitting room. He hands her a letter.)

JOANNA: Mmm. Looks boring. Are they putting up the se

haven't.

ROBERTO: You know what this is about?

JOANNA:Yes I do. Pedro and Ahmedia, inted to play foot

through into the player and.

ROBERTO: You Singuised the gate?

so I used it.

ROBERTO: I don't see why you would do that.

JOANNA: Ahmed is Pedro's friend. He can't open the gate

him. It makes perfect sense to me.



ROBERTO: But not to the people who run the flats. This let rules of the agreement we signed.

JOANNA: When we bought this place. When we didn't have realised what a stupid rule it is.

ROBERTO: That's all very well, Jo, but -

JOANNA:Don't you want Pedro to have friends? Didn't we we liked the idea of the local school, him mixing

ROBERTO: Of course we did. Parity san't just up to us.

JOANNA: Sore of the other mums thought it was a good

JOANNA: The guy with the dog, for instance.

ROBERTO: Him especially. He threatened to set the dog on

to play there. He didn't know Pedro was allowed going to set his dog on anyone he didn't like.

JOANNA: And we should give into him?

ROBERTO: I'm not saying that.

JOANNA: And then there's the homeless. The wardens are

move in, and sleep in the park. It's as if they we

ROBERTO: Look, this is complicated. There's two sorts of h

That's the way they run things here.

JOANNA:lt hasn't always been like that. My grandad was @

back. They were really proud of what they called of public and private. Big, small_expensive, chean

ROBERTO: It's a great idea. ട്രൂസ് റ്റ് ചെട്ട a long time ago.

JOANNA:i ക്രൂട്ടി ക്രാലി try to bring it back?

ROBE ROBE Rourse going into politics?

JOANNA: Not full-time. Just a bit of local agitation.

ROBERTO: Do us a favour, eh? I like this flat. Try not to get



Scene 4

(Chris knocks on Karim's door. Karim opens it.)

CHRIS: Karim, right?

KARIM: What's the matter?

CHRIS: I'm from the local paper. My name's Chris. I'm j

housing and kids' playgrounds. I wondered if I c

ANITA: Why have you come here? Will you get us into to

CHRIS:Not at all Lin haw to use your name if you d

informa ico, and someone said you'd be the pe

(CHRIS enters. They both sit.)

CHRIS: Thanks. Is it right that your son has a serious co

need to take him to the hospital regularly?

KARIM: That's right.

ANITA: Tell him about the parking.

CHRIS: What's that?

KARIM: You know there's two sorts of housing here, Will

CHRIS: That's what I'm interested in.

KARIM: Well, I need to take him in every week. What I'd

main entrance, park in the car park. Then it wo

and drive him out, bring him back.

CHRIS: But you can't do that?

KARIM: No. I have to carry im 1 wn and walk round. It

park, but the splid don't pay enough in service states is the for Windsor Terrace. There's a rich do

ening me that's right?

ANITA And he can't use the playground. He has friends

to. They can't play football together.

CHRIS: So how do you manage that?

ANITA: I tell him he can't play there. He thinks it's just

him having fun. What am I supposed to say? 'Yo

he gets to play there and you can't'?



CHRIS: Is there anything you can do to change this?

ANITA: What can we do?

KARIM: You think the people who run Windsor Terrace

Scene 5

(Roberto and Joanna's sitting room. He's sitting reading the paper when she enter

ROBERTO: How was your day?

JOANNA: My day wa ്രൂ ് ് ഉട്ടാർ, thanks

ROBERTO: JC Jou're winning?

IOANI Not sure. They hate to give anything away, and

someone else. I go to the council, and they say

developers that make the rules.

ROBERTO: What about the developers?

JOANNA: They say it's not up to them. Talk to the council

ROBERTO: So you're stuck?

JOANNA: Not for long. This is about men with money.

ROBERTO: Well, there's a surprise.

JOANNA: But then I get an idea. What are the council for

ROBERTO: Good question.

JOANNA: We vote for them, we give them money. Don't 🕷

ROBERTO: Now and again. Election time.

JOANNA: Can't wait that land

ROBERTO:' weing so cagey, why are you so please

Moan We have this gang of women, from here and from know what we want, and we get on really well.

serious talents there -

ROBERTO: I believe you. Anything else?



JOANNA:Yes. They're scared. The council, and the develor in the local paper, and TV news has picked it up they've got it wrong. They might just decide that

and make it all go away.

ROBERTO: That'd be great.

JOANNA: For Pedro and Ahmed, sure. But what about all

the country?

ROBERTO: What can you do about themail

JOANNA:l'm not surge his king about that. (Fade.)

Scene 6 (The Winds es offices.)

CHRIS: Mr Bernard Harris, manager of Windsor Estates

statement regarding the playground facilities th

HARRIS: I should like to clear up the situation regarding V

correct rumours circulated by the press and sociable to resolve the difficulties which meant that from the playground. It was never our policy to rules meant that some children were kept out, rules. From now on, all the children neighbouring the central playground. Thank you very much.



6. Kicking down the Do

Cast

Following the London Bridge attacks.

- Lucy (interviewer)
- **Shami** (spokesperson for the government)
- Dave (father of Jack Merritt, who was killed in the attack)
- Serena (interviewer)
- **Steve** (prisoner, involved in the Learning Together scheme)
- **Darryn** (volunteer with the Learning Together schools)

(A TV studio, in December 2019. Lucial Salas silvectly to camera.)



And tonight, we'll be looking back to last week's where two people were killed and three serious that convicted terrorist Usman Khan was attended produced two large knives and said he was weal Jack Merritt and Saskia Jones, who were Cambr the course. Other people attending the course & onto London Bridge. They held him at bay until him. It turned out later that the suicide vest was government spokesman, said this:

SHAMI:Our sympathies are with the families of the two killed. But this incident shows the need for long. crimes are involved. We're all in favour of education why we're spending an extra two-and-a-half bil be realistic. The opposition have argued for rele hope to bring in longer sentences for terrorists. election, we'll be able to do that. I've been accu situation. That's not true. I've been demanding

LUCY: And this was the reaction of Jack Merritt's father

DAVE: I don't want my son's death to be used for elect talented young man, but he was also angry, became those in need. He gradian is energy to this pro means bringin nik sity students and convict the പ്രധിത്രം benefit. Jack believed in goodness ್ರಾಕ್ಷ್ಮಿ ವಿಡಿತ of hate. As he saw it, there was a door s keeping out any light or future hope. In his Doc kick that door down, and open up a world of ne concerned, he still marches on, and we should in

LUCY: Earlier today, my colleague Serena MacDonald

Gallant is held. He was one of the prisoners involution conference, and this is what he told her.

(Serena and Steve sit facing each other, in a room at the prison.)



SERENA: So, Steve, can I start by asking how old you are, long you've been there.

SERENA: How do you cope with that?

STEVE: When I came in here, I could hardly read. I've we writing plays. I had a play read in rehearsal at the

London.

SERENA: And how did you make Jack Merritt?

SERENA: Could you tell me what happened on 29th Nove

STEVE: When I heard the noise from downstairs, I went

SERENA: Wasn't that dangerous?

STEVE: There were orders to stay in the hall, but I could

and I had to help. On my way downstairs I saw i

SERENA: Could you tell who was responsible?

STEVE: It was obvious. Khan was standing in the foyer w

hands. He was a clear danger to all, so I didn't h

SERENA: But you weren't armed?

STEVE: There was a big tusk on the wall, so I used that,

a chair to hold him back and prevent him from

SERENA: What about the suicide vest?

STEVE: He showed is the should his waist. He was

chasua il liciito London Bridge and restrained

STEVE: I was sitting on top of him. Officers told me to s

him. It was only later they found the vest was a

SERENA: Thank you, Steve. Is there anything you'd like to

STEVE: Just to thank everyone who did their best on th

passed me that tusk, I could have been killed. It

(Fade.)



(Lucy speaks directly to camera.)

LUCY: And thank you for that, Serena. Steve mentione fight by Darryn Frost. Darryn's a civil servant wh

and he's joined me in the studio.

(Camera moves back to show Lucy and Darryn, seated in the studio.)

LUCY: So, how does it feel to be a hero?

DARRYN: I don't feel like a hero. I feel a lity, to be hones

LUCY: But you've down no hing wrong.

DARRYN: Salv und Saskia were killed. That's made a huge

...... in what way?

DARRYN: I really respected them, and I'm gutted that the huge drive within me to challenge hatred and in

LUCY: And how do you feel about Usman Khan?

DARRYN: Well, he comes from this country, and people n

was so extreme. I'd guess he was influenced by

ones, because of our actions abroad.

LUCY: When you say our actions -

as judge, jury and executioner. That's the sort of

LUCY: And in the fight with Usman Khan, it was you w

Steve Gallant.

DARRYN: That's right. There were these two tusks fixed o

carefully, didn't want to break the point.

LUCY: But it worked?

'' ಿ ೯ ೧ ವಿ, yes. John Crilly had a fire extinguish@

Khan into the street. We shouted at people to g had killed people. I managed to stab him in the

of him.

LUCY: Weren't you worried about the bomb?

DARRYN: Of course. Then the police shot him and you co

and a bit of cardboard. But we didn't know that

LUCY: And how do you feel now?



DARRYN: It's been strange. The first two weeks were hore depression, feeling guilty. Why should I enjoy more can't? But I'm proud of what we did, and that's

LUCY: Thanks to Darryn for that. And here are some of sent in:

1: Khan was a convicted terrorist. What did you

2: Jack and Saskia's work has to go on – we owe

3: Is Darryn some kind of terrorist sympathiser?

4: What a waste. Two young "ses, full of hope as like that.

5: I've spok _______ for mer prisoners whose lives half sing to _____ wed it to good teachers. None of the ______ of punishment that helped.

6: We don't need to talk about this. Just lock the key.

LUCY: And if you want to have your say, tweet on #lor

(Blackout.)





7. Picking up the Piece

Cast

- Mary
- Hilda
- Diane
- Sadio
- Ken

(The office of a TV company, in the week after the election soft, December 2019, large table.)

MARY: Swiffing, everyone. So, what did we make

HILDA A historic victory, I'd say.

DIANE: Victory for what, exactly?

MARY: That's the point, isn't it? In a fortnight, we have to

our viewers – That Was the Vote That Was. So, v

SADIQ:'Get Brexit done.' That was the slogan, and that

DIANE: Even if it's a lie?

SADIQ: You're saying the voters didn't know what they

negotiations, some of them nasty. Nobody who

end up with.

KEN: That's always been true. Go out into the street

difference was between May's deal and Johnso

tell you.

HILDA: But they would say they don't want to go back to

DIANE: She got a rough in Decause she was a woman

HILDA: A Social rough time because she kept dithering

with Remoaners asking for another vote, so that

DIANE: If they'd had another vote, they might well have

in favour of Remain than of Leave.

SADIQ: Such a shame that they couldn't get their act to

MARY: OK, folks. That's enough bickering. Brexit's obvi



KEN: For some Labour voters, it's the only factor. The down the country, saying, 'I've always voted Lab Brexit was the reason.

DIANE: They're that desperate to be out of Europe?

KEN: They're desperate to be taken seriously. That's Brexit vote. Nothing to do with Europe. For the time, everybody knew that their vote mattered

MARY:l'm sure that's important.

DIANE: Even if the campaign was full of lies?

HILDA: Amen't watery. We can't keep going backwards

HILDA: I think the future matters. In a way, voters were

over Corbyn.

SADIQ: People hated Corbyn. Couldn't stand the idea o

HILDA: Maybe, but that's not what I'm saying. My poin

Johnson over May. They've had three years of g suddenly someone comes up and says, 'I'll sort

MARY: And was that the reason for the Conservative su

SADIQ: Has to be. There wasn't anything else.

HILDA: That's not true. There were spending promises

20,000 policemen.

KEN: If you believe that, you'll believe anything.

HILDA: You don't think we need nurses?

KEN: I don't think we'll get them by getting crowds to

like going into a shop and hung toy soldiers – People have to apply nue selected and be tra

and money

SADIQ: 4 6, were were promises, some of them dodg

No other cabinet ministers, no serious manifest

DIANE: I thought it was terrible.

SADIQ: But it worked.

MARY: What about the Labour manifesto?

HILDA: Must we - really?

DIANE: There were some popular ideas in there...



SADIQ: But you had to dig to find them. There were so that all that was going to happen.

HILDA: When was the last time Labour ever really delive

MARY: Is that why Labour lost?

KEN: How long have you got? There were lots of reas

programme was left-wing -

DIANE: They were disorganised. Not all the what was

targeted the wrong was its

SADIQ: Not to region anti-Semitism.

DIAN But the Tories have a problem with Islamophob

SADIQ: Not as big a problem.

DIANE: It's not as well publicised, because the media has

know it's a great way to undermine him.

HILDA: Here we go again. The left-wing saint undermin

This is what happened. There were examples of working in the Labour Party tried to put a stop to

officials interfered.

DIANE: It's a management problem, not hatred of Jews

HILDA:OK, so they're incompetent rather than nasty.

sorting, and Labour didn't sort it.

SADIQ: And that definitely cost them votes.

KEN: Not being sure about Brexit didn't help. Were w

Europe, get another deal, and then have a vote really decent guy, but there's no way he gets 10

this election.

MARY:So here'ു tile ു palem. There are more people i

ຸ້າ Europe than want to leave it, but that's ກ

sount up the seats. Why's that?

SADIQ: What are you talking about?

DIANE: He was the one who made the difference in the

got most seats in the European elections. And note to be sorted, he pulls out most of his candidates run. I can't stand him, but the guy's a genius.



MARY: So why did he do that?

HILDA: I don't think they had the organisation. They co

many candidates.

SADIQ: These days it's all online. You don't need that m

DIANE: Labour have got more members than the Tories

much difference.

KEN: And then there's the electrical system. First past

tons of people it jurable it matter how they we

DIANE: That can to wright.

MARY Look at the Liberal Democrats. Their vote went lost 14 seats. It's crazy. The number of seats you

the votes cast across the country.

DIANE: When will that get changed?

KEN: At this rate, never.

SADIQ:Labour had a chance. Back in 1997 they'd agree

system needed to be changed.

DIANE: So what went wrong?

KEN:Labour won a landslide. That's what went wron

majority, why would you vote to change the sys

MARY: If we look ahead, it's even less likely that there'

chance that Scotland will be looking for independent Neither half of Ireland is happy with a border in together and pull out. Take away Ireland and Scotland a majority in England that could last forever

DIANE: Oh, great.

SADIQ: Why is "language ad?

MARY: OK. Leave the bickering, guys. Concentrate on w

they look ahead to the future, what should they

HILDA: Even if we're out of Europe, we're not just on o

the rest of the world?

KEN: The USA? Johnson's friends with Trump, and a

Are we looking to get closer to them?



MARY: Look around you – China, Brazil, India, Turkey, Hook around you – China, Brazil, India, Ind

DIANE: So governments will all be run by bullying men?

MARY: I hope not – but it's not locking hopeful. People

SADIQ: And then the state of the section of

st 👙 mere.

KEN: A lot of it depressing. We still haven't sorted ou

were involved in the Brexit vote -

HILDA: Here we go. Back to the past again.

KEN: In the last week of the campaign, Vote Leave an

out huge amounts of targeted digital advertising limits allowed. But if you add all that together, it

the Russians were putting out.

MARY: Is that right?

KEN: There was a report. We're still waiting for the f

SADIQ: But the rest of the world isn't. Big shock - Brexi

wants to know?

HILDA: I don't think they want to. And I think they're si

them that they need to.

SADIQ:Then there's the way was get our news.

MARY: it?

SADIC It's changing. My mum and dad sat down at 10 what the BBC had to say. We don't do that any

DIANE: Johnson's certainly got it in for them – doesn't

BBC, wants to close Channel 4 down.

SADIQ: It's not just personal. It's an old model; things h



MARY: All right, you two, that's enough. But the future there. At the moment, Johnson's on a roll, but whappen if he isn't a success?

KEN: There's no way he can do everything he's promlevel up these towns in the North and the Midla neglect, factories dying, council taxes cut. He ca couple of years.

MARY: So what happens then?

KEN: Maybe that's Labou is the working at the strying to put the section.

HILDA You're not very hopeful, are you?

SADIQ: Honestly? No.

MARY: Maybe we've got enough to work on as it is. We we have already, and decide how to tackle it. Is

DIANE: Yes.

SADIQ: You don't give up, do you?

DIANE: On this particular one, no.

MARY: Go on, then, Diane.

DIANE: Why do the old always decide things for the you

KEN: Because they always have. You'll get your chan

DIANE: I don't think so. Brexit? More than 60 per cent

less than 30% of the under 25s do. In the 2017

Tory, and the same this time.

HILDA: Would started whem voting?

HILDA: It's too big, too difficult...

KEN: It didn't feature in the election.

DIANE: And why was that, do you think? Why did the sh

country all decide 'You know what? Whether th

big deal...' (Fade.)



8. Taking It Seriously

Cast

- Winston Jackson
- Carol Jackson (his wife)
- Nina Jackson (their daughter)
- Mr Phillips (part of the Prevent campaign)
- Mr Choudry (teacher at the Nelson Mandela school)
- Ms McCann (teacher at the Nelson Mandela school)

Scene 1

(The Jackson home, in the morning.)

Dad, I'm not going in.

...... Don't you care about your education?

NINA: Of course I care about my education. I care about

strike is about.

CAROL: Winston, we've talked about this.

WINSTON: Yes, and we don't agree.

NINA: But you can't stop her now. She's made her cho

WINSTON: Which happens to be the same choice that you's

CAROL: That's not the point. She's made it.

WINSTON: And what do you think the school are going to d

CAROL: I don't know. We'll cope with that when they de

WINSTON: Oh, that's great.

CAROL: But now is not the time to be talking about this.

WINSTON: You wo if weathis could be trouble?

CARO

". All sorts of things can be trouble. But Nina's tho about it, and for me that's enough. Good luck, I

NINA: Thanks, Mum. (CAROL goes.)

WINSTON: She's as bad as you are.

NINA: Yeah. Maybe she gets it from me. Bye, Dad. (Sh



Scene 2

(A phone conversation, between Mr Choudry and Mr Phillips.)

CHOUDRY: Hello? Is this the Prevent hotline?

PHILLIPS: Yes, sir. How can we help?

CHOUDRY: I'm a teacher at the Nelson Mandela Academy.

PHILLIPS: Go on.

CHOUDRY: I'd rather not give man

PHILLIPS:That's fire we grateful for any information,

w 🕆 ເປັນ confidentiality.

.... We had this briefing about extremism, looking f

PHILLIPS: Yes?

CHOUDRY: It's difficult, you see...

PHILLIPS: This is regarding a pupil at the school, right?

CHOUDRY: That's correct.

PHILLIPS: If you think there's cause for concern, then you

all you need to do. There's no need for you to be ... and nobody need know that you were the sou

PHILLIPS: There would be no point in us putting in all this

immediately exposed. We're used to working the

CHOUDRY: So what do you need?

PHILLIPS: The pupil's name and add S A brief outline of

CHOUDRY: As simp

PHILLIPS es, really.

...... Very well. Nina Jackson. Year 11 – she's 16. Live

member of the local XR group, and she's been i school strike earlier this week. Very vocal, keen

campaigning issues in my lessons.

PHILLIPS: And that's quite enough. Leave it to us. We can

CHOUDRY: What will happen to her?



PHILLIPS: It all depends. We'll have a chat, with her and he there's no need for further action. If there is call

know what to do. But you were right to call.

CHOUDRY: Thank you. (Call ends.)

Scene 3

(Winston at home, watching TV. The doorbell rings. He turns the TV off and opens)

PHILLIPS: Mr Jackson?

WINSTON: Yes?

PHILLIPS: % "ber of Nina Jackson, at the Nelson Mandela?"

WINS: Are you the police?

PHILLIPS: My name's Phillips. I'm part of the Prevent prog

WINSTON: Prevent what?

PHILLIPS: Can we sit down and talk about this?

WINSTON: OK. Come in. Sit down. (PHILLIPS enters, and the

PHILLIPS:Thank you. We were set up to counter extremis

WINSTON: You're saying Nina's an extremist?

PHILLIPS: If there's the possibility of her getting involved,

WINSTON: Well, of course.

PHILLIPS: All we're saying is, she might be at risk. The aim

before they develop, nip them in the bud.

WINSTON: This is the school strike rice.

PHILLIPS: Tell me to the about

WINSTOS: A group of them stayed off school last week. W Linked up with other schools. But I don't think to

PHILLIPS: That's good. And your daughter was involved in

WINSTON: Oh yes. She takes after her mother. If she thinks in there. But you're not saying she's been violen



PHILLIPS: Things can get out of hand. You start off warning

you end up fighting on top of a Tube train. Is it

with Nina?

WINSTON: You can when she comes home. She's out with

meetings. XR, I think they call it.

PHILLIPS: But you're not involved in that?

WINSTON: Not me, no. I'm not the organising type. Me and

She's always been active, gone to groups, been

of that, keep out of trouble

PHILLIPS: That sound semable

MINICTON.

There'll be plenty of time for the other stuff wh

PHILLIPS: And in this XR group, do you know what she do

WINSTON: You'd have to ask her. I try not to get involved.

feels very strongly. But she's not violent.

PHILLIPS: That's good to hear.

(CAROL and NINA come home.)

CAROL: and we can get the local paper in.

NINA: Nobody reads that, Mum. It's social media that

(Carol notices Phillips.)

CAROL: Good evening. Who's this, Winston?

WINSTON: Mr Phillips, from the Prevent programme.

CAROL: You're kidding me?

WINSTON: Hang on, Carol.

mess up people's jobs, basically make trouble.

PHILLIPS: That's not fair, Mrs Jackson.

CAROL: Isn't it? So why are you here? Do you have a wa

PHILLIPS: We're a long way from that.

CAROL: So where are you, exactly?



PHILLIPS: Concerns have been raised about Nina...

NINA: Me? What have I done?

CAROL: What concerns, exactly?

WINSTON: Wait a minute -

PHILLIPS: There's no need for this to get heated. But if the

it seriously.

NINA:You're right. There wath sat, and I take it very

some kind 🧘 e. Wina's feeling a bit stroppy

PHILLIPS: ______ I s not what I'm saying.

of young people.

PHILIPS: We can't possibly know that.

NINA:Yes, we can. American research, into six million

those numbers would be like if the temperature

PHILLIPS: Wait a minute.

CAROL: Wait for what? Our daughter to get in trouble b

source thinks she's just a bit too excited about

NINA: What exactly am I supposed to have done?

PHILLIPS: There's no actual charge involved.

CAROL: Who put you up to this?

PHILLIPS: We can't reveal our sources, I'm afraid.

CAROL: It's not the police. You' ad trouble with

NINA: Mum?

CAROL: So It's the school. Someone at the school has sa

PHILLIP Concerns have been raised –

CAROL: Well you can just unraise them. And you can lea

come back until you have a specific charge you

my daughter.

PHILLIPS:(Stands.) Mrs Jackson -



CAROL: I thought that was clear. Have I not been clear?

PHILLIPS: Yes. Right. Well, I'll be off.

(PHILLIPS goes.)

WINSTON: Terrific.

CAROL: What do you mean, terrific?

WINSTON: Nosey man comes sniffing and and thinking we

him to get lost.

المراجية الم always as simple as you think. You start off wark end up fighting on top of a Tube train.

CAROL: Seriously? That's what we're arguing about her

CAROL: You've raised your voice. You've been involved

NINA: And that's it? That's a crime.

WINSTON: It's not as simple as that.

CAROL: You think? OK. I'm working tomorrow but you'v

don't you go round to the school and find out w

NINA: No, Dad. Please. There's no point.

CAROL: There's no way Ellie McCann would be reporting

WINSTON: Maybe she has to. Maybe those are the rules no

CAROL: Fine. In which case we will to know. So you go

(Blackout





Scene 4

(At Nina's school next day. Winston is sitting in a waiting room when Ms McCann

WINSTON: Thanks so much for seeing me.

Ms McCANN: You're lucky, but I'm afraid it'll have to be quick

WINSTON: We had someone round last night, from Preven

Ms McCANN: They were asking about Nina?

WINSTON: That's right. I mean is so with can be a pain -

Ms McCANN: Ning a given whe says what she thinks, fine -

Ms McCANN: - but there's no way she's a violent risk.

WINSTON: You didn't report her?

Ms McCANN: Mr Jackson, there is no way I would ever report

WINSTON: But you got her into this -

Ms McCANN: Hang on. Let's be really clear about what's goin

English, she's a really good student and she's do environment club, and she chooses to come to environment club ask what else they can do, I to that includes XR. But I'm not recruiting in school

decides for herself. You must know that?

WINSTON: Of course. But you have been asked to ... well, ke

Ms McCANN: That's right. But it all depends on what you mea

definition would be anywhere near theirs. I mean to deal with Islamist terrorists and far-right thug attack. Do you see Ning he grapable of that?

WINSTON: I guess പ്രദ്യാത്തില് ക്രാവർ get out of hand. I me

Ms M : Mr Jackson, I'm involved in Extinction Rebellion

WINSTON: I know that.

Ms McCANN: I don't know anyone in the organisation who thin

Tube train was a good idea. It was a mistake, righ

WINSTON: But Nina is angry about climate change.



Ms McCANN: Of course. And she's every right to be. Her gene the pieces from our failure to take action.

WINSTON: Well, we could argue about that. I'm not that full

obviously, it's Nina I'm worried about. Is it poss

school has reported her?

Ms McCANN: I'm afraid so. It's quite possible. We've all had the

reporting pupils, but we don't all have the same the catch. This stuff is very secretive. Nobody's shard to know what's going and all if I find anyther

WINSTON: Thanks very 2. And thanks for your time.

(She goes back to work single corridor; he goes out.)



Scene 5

(Later, in the staffroom. Mr Choudry is sitting at a table, marking some papers. Ms Mc remains standing.)

Ms McCANN: Mr Choudry?

Mr CHOUDRY: Yes.

Ms McCANN: I've just been talking to Winston Jackson. Fathe

Mr CHOUDRY: I know Nina.

Ms McCANN: And do you also know why she's been referred

Mr CHOUDRY: How could I know that?

Ms McCANN: That's why I'm asking.

Mr CHOUDRY: You must know that referrals to Prevent are com

Ms McCANN: I know that. I got the same நிர்ந் that you did

anyone could regard in http://www.as a credible

Mr CHOUDRY: Power of would agree that the terrorist threat is \$

Ms M : That's not the point... But now you mention it, n

Mr CHOUDRY: You don't think terrorism is a serious threat?

Ms McCANN: Over 20 years in this country it's killed, what ...

Mr CHOUDRY: And you don't care about them?



Ms McCANN: Sure. But I also care about the 1,800 victims of what, 15 times more?

Mr CHOUDRY: And they matter more because they're women

Ms McCANN: Not all of them, no. But they all matter. And I fin

all this time and money into tracking down terre

people at home.

Mr CHOUDRY: Luckily, it's not your choice. We don't make the

who decide.

Ms McCANN: Experts in what, experts in white whit

Mr CHOUDRY: I ปาวาง เหมือนเคลื่อกป nor do you. I don't set myself

்ர 🖒 décide exactly why officials have got it wr

Ms Mc : So you did report her?

Mr CHOUDRY: I didn't say that. But I don't think Nina Jackson i

government policy is misguided, and I don't thin

interrupt her education as a result.

Ms McCANN: Luckily, that's not your choice.

Mr CHOUDRY: No. It's another case where you and I take opposite

agree to differ. (Fade.)





9. Changing the Worl

Cast

- Muptaz Saleem (IT whizz-kid, later tech businessman)
- Danny (his friend and colleague)
- Sharon (colleag)
- Maria (interview)
- Jim Marshall (c)

(California. 2020, but remembering 20 years before that. A spotlight on Danny, spe

(The spotlig

s, as Danny moves to join Muptaz.)

MUPTAZ: You know what, Danny? I think this could be real

DANNY: Sure. But we're not charging people, right?

MUPTAZ: No way. If you charge – like the phone company

customers. You lose the people who can't affor

DANNY: And we want them, right?

MUPTAZ: We want them all. We are going to change the

DANNY: And no adverts, yeah?

MUPTAZ: Course not. Adverts would kill the whole thing

(Danny moves briefly forward to address the audience.)

DANNY: But then, along came Sharon.

(And then rejoins Muptaz as SHARON approaches.)

SHARON: Hi, boys. How're you do ing

DANNY: File the 185

SHAR 🐔 Muptaz?

MUPTAZ: Hi, Sharon. I'm guessing you're after something

SHARON: Yup. I want to make you rich.

DANNY: I'm not sure I like the sound of that.

SHARON: Course you do. Everyone wants to be rich.



MUPTAZ: Go on, then.

SHARON: All this stuff you're collecting – it's data. You may

DANNY: Someone's going to pay us for people's names?

SHARON: Not just names. Addresses, friends, things they

collect all that lot into a bundle, lots of little bur

stuff will be very interested.

DANNY: But we're not doing adverts.

SHARON: And you're not making a profit. So you can't exp

collections and you'll make a fortune. Mayl www. "r want your company to grow – and if you

on your hands.

.......... Nice try, Sharon. Always good to see you.

SHARON: What d'you think, Muptaz?

MUPTAZ: I'll think about it.

(Freeze, as Danny moves forward again.)

DANNY: And for me, that was the beginning of the end.

about connecting – putting people in touch with was all about collecting – building up the data,

a household name.

(A TV studio, in which Maria is interviewing Muptaz. Both are seated, facing each

MARIA: And today I'm talking to Muptaz Saleem, the bill

MUPTAZ: Do I look like a businessman?

MARIA: Is that deliberate – the clothes, the style, the ca

MUPTAZ: I look like other people my age. I don't think we

It doesn't matter how I tall a hat matters is - @

better place?

MARIA: And what syour answer?

". I'd say we do. Think of the things computers car tickets, download music, plan our journeys. If w computer, we can use the computer to fix it. A get enough of them.

MARIA: Are they addicts? Are you giving them a drug?

MUPTAZ: Not at all. Some older people will get scared. The

lot of the stuff which made them feel safe isn't

provide a future that works for everyone.



MARIA: That sounds very ambitious.

MUPTAZ: We're sure that we can help citizens to be more

MARIA: Really?

MUPTAZ: We ran this experiment, trying to get people to

about polling places, and there was a button the that, and all your friends knew what you'd done people voted who wouldn't have done. We made

MARIA: So what does the future look ke to Muptaz Sal

MUPTAZ: It's exciting a new frontier.

MARIA:to be any rules.

MUPT And that's what makes it great. It's government go three times slower than businesses. And mo

slower than we do. So the last thing we want is that takes nine times as long as we do to make

MARIA: And where will this end up?

MUPTAZ: We'll end up knowing every book, film and song

strange city, we can tell you which bar to go to. bartender has your favourite drink ready. You lo

people just like you.

(Fade, as Danny steps forward into the spotlight.)

DANNY: Bless. Don't that just warm your heart? But our

more – they were a source of revenue. Take Jim

(Danny points to JIM, who steps forward.)

JIM: I bought this diamond ring for my girlfriend. It w

Year. Next day, I get this call from a friend, cong engagement. It's all there, on my page, telling engirlfriend, what I'd bought. how much it cos wrecked what was approved to be special between

this, with a nowledge or consent.

(Fades, as Muptaz anxinum war mouches Sharon.)

MUP1 What do I do?

SHARON: Say it was a mistake, the program went wrong.

MUPTAZ: We have to stop, right?

SHARON: Are you crazy? We're on a goldmine here. We have

But we're going to keep on growing. Here's a list

ought to buy. (Hands over sheet.)



MUPTAZ:(Reading through.) Really? Some of these are har

SHARON: Some of them are losing money.

MUPTAZ: But it's smart for us to buy them?

SHARON: Absolutely. They're not doing good business, but

and data collection is what we do. Trust me, Mu

(Fade, as Danny comes back into the spotlight.)

questions, or worrying if Sharon had got it wron

(Fade, and back to the TV studio. As before, Maria talking to Muptaz. But this time

MARIA: So, Muptaz, we haven't talked for a while. You'

MUPTAZ: That's right. It's going well.

MARIA: You're not worried about reports that social me

the Brexit vote and Trump's election depended

MUPTAZ: No, that's crazy. There's no way that could hap

MARIA: What about the rumours that you shared data w

MUPTAZ: Certainly not. Totally untrue.

MARIA: But there are political adverts on your platform

worried about controlling them?

MUPTAZ: We put in a lot of effort to make sure we remove

MARIA: But you don't remove dients that tell lies?

MUPTAZ:'் ்கர் பேசு job to tell people what to think.

MUPTAZ: Our actual procedures have to remain confiden

MARIA: But they do suffer from mental stress and illnes

MUPTAZ: I didn't say that. There's a lot of hysterical report you've changed your tone since the last time we



MARIA: What's changed, Muptaz, is that we've learnt a For instance, you've changed your rules about p

MUPTAZ: That's true. Society moves on, so things have to aren't set in stone. We decided that things are dwent for it.

MARIA: That's your decision? You don't want to ask peo their privacy?

MUPTAZ: They're not in a position to sighthat. We're the of happening. We know and what how to organish he world so that we can solve

MARIA: ar jyour plans for the future?

MARIA: That's serious stuff.

MUPTAZ: Of course. Did you think we were joking?

MARIA: Are you serious about the impact you have? The who suffer from mental illness, the bright young work for you than go into public service?

MUPTAZ: We don't kidnap them. They're free to choose.

MARIA: So you're not worried what your critics say?

MUPTAZ: A lot of people can't adapt to change. We eithe possibilities or we go backwards, to how it used

MARIA:lt's as simple as that? All or nothing? Isn't there

Some journey, huh? You start off as a kid in a she you're God. He didn't use to talk like that. But he's selling products, and all he cares about is se

He'll tell you that that's the way it has to be, that controlled. But he's wrong. I know that it could have been so much better. It all depends which

COPYRIGHT PROTECTED



Looking Ahead: Original Scripts for KS3 Drama

DANNY

Page 54 of 65

10. Teaching the Trut

Cast

- Carwyn (head teacher at a junior school)
- Manjit (teacher at the school)
- Simon (teacher at the school)

- Gerald (teach)
- Fiona (teache)
- Astrid (visitin)

(A junior school staff meeting. Carwyn is seated at the head of a large table. Around it

CARWYN: We're just waiting for Gerald hen.

MANJIT: And we shan't is so that next year.

SIMON: s finishing, then?

GERA. (He sits down.)

CARWYN: We need to make a start, as we've a lot to fit in

agenda. So, Astrid -

SIMON: Carwyn, does this have to be the first item?

CARWYN: What's the problem, Simon?

MANJIT: To you, maybe. To some of us it's more importal

SIMON: So this is your idea?

CARWYN:Simon, I'm the head teacher. I put it at the top

we're starting with. My apologies, Astrid. Over

ASTRID:Thank you. And thank you all for making me so

grateful. I've been talking with Carwyn, and we for me to outline a scheme I was involved in whis to encourage all pupils to examine information

GERALD: This is in primary school ?

ASTRID: It's in all നിയ ചെട്ടു Across the country, and all age

ൂ ിർച്ചു, i was in a primary school. We often

ve were doing.

SIMONlt's a nice idea, but –

ASTRID: It is a nice idea, but it also works. Transparency

on how clearly young people can see through d

came third, out of 180 countries.

FIONA: What about the UK?

ASTRID: Eleventh or twelfth, I think.



SIMON: Which is not bad.

MANJIT: But could be better, if we learnt from the people

Parliament did a survey on how many British ch

difference between fake and real news.

CARWYN: Well, how many was it?

MANJIT: Two per cent.

SIMON:You've really prepared for this haven't you?

MANJIT:lt's not a plot. 'instance's to be better. I think

Astrid', . Firs about could help us to change the

FIONA: So if I was teaching this, what would I actually be

ASTRIC Well, analysing adverts...

GERALD: So it's English teachers?

campaigns, Art teachers show children how to reteachers examine examples of misleading statistics effort, with all teachers putting in their own angular transfer of the control of the co

that the little bits add up to a programme.

FIONA: That's amazing.

GERALD: Exhausting, more like.

ASTRID: You're both right. It's a lot of work, but the work

CARWYN: It sounds great, but I can't see it happening her

MANJIT: Why not?

CARWYN: In the UK we can't agree on anything. And the w

is different.

MANJIT: Right. Finitage cool, rational place where the

the JK i carvided mess dominated by its colon

GERA Is that how you see this country?

MANJIT: Well, let's just say we're different. But in this ca

we'd be better off. That's a good reason for ma

SIMON: So this is political?

parties support this. If it has a bias, it's a bias in

not taking things on trust.



GERALD: And you think our kids would be up to that?

MANJIT: Do you think they wouldn't?

ASTRID: It may sound very serious, but it can be fun too

and getting children to be detectives - they love

SIMON: But there is a serious aim?

ASTRID: Of course. We looked at our children, and what

TV, social media. There are so many new pressulfast – it's easy for the circle and o get swamped.

they don't knc ຈ ພາດ ພາຍlieve.

FIONA: of plust the kids. That's how I feel.

CARWSo Astrid, you've been here since September. D

something like this here?

ASTRID: Absolutely. The organisation of schools is differ

very different -

GERALD: You can say that again. When I was younger we

bit different, and it was all over the papers. Lies

FIONA: But who reads the papers, nowadays? Our kids

MANJIT: It doesn't stop the government being scared of

ASTRID: There's different ways to get your information.

look things up, not just Wikipedia. They must ge

CARWYN: I like the sound of that. I listen to some of our k

SIMON: Just because our kids might benefit doesn't mea

it. This sounds to me like the sort of scheme that

ASTRID: Of course, it's easier to do, and it's more likely to

MANJIT: But doing something is houser than doing nothing

SIMON: Sampu're are hurry to dive in.

LGBT business.

CARWYN: No, please. Don't let's get into that.

MANJIT: All I'm saying is, our government won't have the

this. If some schools do it, and make it work, the

take it up.



CARWYN: So we'd be pioneers?

GERALD: I'm not sure how I feel about that.

FIONA: I think it's exciting.

MANJIT: Me too. I'm glad you agree.

SIMON: Before we all get carried away, let's think about

there materials for this, a course that's been pull

make it up ourselves as we go along?

MANJIT: I'm not sure that's how thing.

add another layer of work on top of what we're

CARWYN: I must say that is a worry for me. I like the soun

sure we could take it on in a big way, across the

ideas about what we might do?

ASTRID: I've thought about this, and I know it has to star

especially in Art, I know there are things we can in Finland. I'd be happy to make those available

these ideas with other classes.

MANJIT: There's a lot of work we already do in English, a

That needs bringing up to date, with social med mean, if you look at the Brexit campaign, or the

CARWYN: No, Manjit. We're not getting into that. And we

MANJIT:These are key moments in our history. Our kids'

SIMON: And this school's future will be finished if you st

FIONA: It's a shame, though. I do think it's important.

ASTRID: So we need to be some and think about what e

teach. Star av y from politics, maybe, but think

្នាំ 🔭 ្រកាត់t kind of power do they have, and h

hemselves against it?

SIMON So the enemy is capitalism?

MANJIT: The enemy is lies.

ASTRID: It's not as simple as that. We're not giving answ

to ask questions, to find their own answers.

CARWYN: And how does that work?



ASTRID: We're not just dealing with lies. We have three disinformation, and malinformation.

FIONA: What's the difference?

ASTRID: Misinformation is things that aren't true, maybe

is deliberate lying, setting out to deceive. And n might not be true, but is setting out to hurt.

SIMON: That's really complicated. Don't tell me all Finnis

્રમ ્યું aestions they would ask.

SIMO That's very impressive, but it's not in the Nation

MANJIT: Which is a shame. But there's a lot you won't fire

foodbanks. A serious approach to climate chang

CARWYN: All right, Manjit, let's not get carried away. This

we have to try to agree what's practical.

I'm assuming that Astrid and Manjit both want to

FIONA: I think it sounds great.

SIMON: But not the best thing to dominate your first ye

MANJIT: Why not? I can't think of a better way to train y

SIMON: Maybe you can't, but I can.

CARWYN: There's no need for you two to fight about how

discuss that with her later. So we'll encourage A work with their own classes, in a small trial run,

they've done next term.

GERALD: Carwyn?

CARWYN: V" (is t, Gerald?

CARWYN: But ... well, you'll be finishing soon, Gerald.

GERALD: I know. I'm old, and a bit set in my ways. But I li

me of how I was when I started teaching. We're much more than I do now, but I can remember you think it's important, and the kids get interestork. The work's more satisfying, for you and the

a bit more. (Fade.)



Tasks

These scripts can be used in different ways. They can be read in groups, and ther discussion and/or written work. They could be performed, in class or in an assemwhole class or in small groups. There is no obligation for pupils to attempt every — that's a choice for the teacher.

With each play, there is a Write/Improvise task, offering the chance for fuller explactivities — writing a long script on your own or working in a group towards a presidifferent, and it must be a teacher choice about whether you wish to choose one pupils a choice.

Some of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better suited to require a power of the plays are better to require and the plays are better

A further of



an ambitious programme which takes on a number of themes

The Group Circus

The class is divided up into four or five small groups. Each group gets copies of o 3, 5, 6, 8, 9), which they have to read through and then discuss. A possible assign most important speeches in this play. Say why they matter, and what your group have had time to read through, discuss and prepare, each then does a presentate extract from it) and presenting their findings. That would require careful organism ground in three hours, and the fact that each group is presenting a different scrip unique interest — only the performers know what's coming.

A possible follow-up assignment would be for each member of the class to write free choice between the five themes that have been covered.

1. Think before You Tweet

- A. This scene is about footballers, but the problems of social media affect ever problems relating to social media which have happened in the last month, a seriousness – No. 1 is the most important.
- B. Imagine that you're offering advice to junior school pupils about using social you could offer them of how social media could go wrous, and three pieces find useful.
- C. Imagine that one of the footh is the scene has a problem relating to see play scene involving the see, a close friend, one parent, a representative





2. Kicking the Habit

A. What's wrong with the following statement?

'John Marks was a drugs reformer who got carried away by his own ideas. He methods that he failed to see that they were a threat to the health of his partown. In the end he had to be stopped from doing further damage.'

Write your own version, which gives the true story.

B. Neil Woods, promoting his book in 2016, goes out of his way to mention a d than 20 years ago.

Why does he think John Marks is so important?

C. Imagine that today a group of people is set up to try to agree about how druit include a doctor and the concer, a young addict, the parent of a youngster was a journed.

Write/improvise a script like this one, which mixes drama and a TV interview

3. Taking back Control

- A. According to Colm, how has the job at the Home Office changed?
- B. In the final scene between Phil and Janine, neither of them says in full what paragraphs, one for each of them, giving their full thoughts at that time.
- C. Meera is upset by what's happened to the students accused of cheating. Im thinking of giving up her job. Some of her relatives agree with her; others do

Write/improvise a play scene about what happens next.

4. Living with Fear

A. Imagine that you were going to perform this play to an audience. Draw a dia stage it – where would the various actors be in relation to the audience?

Write notes for each of the characters, saying what they should wear, and h

Plays aren't the same all the way through – they being up to important moments in this play?

B. CONOR: You've just dismi ම th shings that I believe in, and I know a lot o

RUTH: er got results.

Conor and Ruth disagree, but one of the disagreements between them is will discussion, which facts are important?

Find out about the SVRU (Scottish Violence Reduction Unit) and find evidenthis discussion.

C. This scene gives you some clues about what Marlon's film might be like. Wr and improvise/write in detail one scene in the film.



5. Another World - Next Door

- A. Why does Mr Harris change his mind?
- B. This is a short play, which moves quickly between three settings. In a performance set to show what kind of a place each of these is?
 - (a) Karim and Anita's home
 - (b) Windsor Estates offices
 - (c) Roberto and Joanna's home

How could costume help with this?

C. This play shows a campaign against inequalit

Write/improvise your own oly, a campaign against inequality, which m

- (i) The children of it is get better exam results, and are likely to live
- (ii) Moderne new 2008 sports teams are treated very differently, so far as a serned.
- (iii) BM volack or minority ethnic) MPs are treated differently from white

Think about what you're attacking, why you think things should change, and public support.

6. Kicking down the Door

- A. Imagine that after this programme, Shami Roy and Dave Merritt bump into differences between them. Write their conversation as a dialogue.
- B. Write one chapter from the autobiography of Steve Gallant.
- C. This play is in the form of a TV documentary. It includes straight reporting of people involved (a government minister, and the father of a victim) and two

Use a similar mixture to tell the story of an event which has happened in the you write yourself OR in a group improvisation.





7. Picking up the Pieces

Name	Age	Costume	Approach to
Mary			
Hilda			
Diane			
Sadiq			
Ken			

- A. Fill in the chart above for the catters in this play.
- B. 'Why of play ways decide things for the young?'

Write a letter to the government, outlining the ways in which you think you treated, and how things could be changed to give them a better future.

This scene shows a group of people comparing notes on something that's julial – but which they see differently.

Write/improvise your own play scene about one of the following situations:

- (i) A sports team which has just lost an important match
- (ii) The people involved in making a film, who've just watched it for the fir
- (iii) A school council (involving teachers and pupils) who look back on what school year, and plan improvement for the future

8. Taking It Seriously

- A. What do you think the main differences are between Carol and Winston? In differences between them. Think about how they treat Nina, how they speak XR, and their relationship with the school.
- B. Imagine that the head teacher hears about the disagreement between Mr C arranges a meeting with them to try to agree on how they should deal with about that meeting.
- C. XR members feel strongly that climate change is a cost, which needs urgent attention to the issue, and that might be spining traffic, blocking roads digging up the lawn of a Carriage Sege. Different members have different should go and which the second be best for the campaign.

Write/ is see a play scene in which XR members discuss their tactics for organisemis play uses contrasts (between Carol and Winston, between Ms show the disagreements involved; think about what contrasts you want to contrasts.



9. Changing the World

- A. This script covers the development of Internet platforms over more than 20 and BAD, make notes on the different effects it describes.
- B. Muptaz Saleem is imaginary, but he's based on some real-life characters. The Bosworth, a Facebook executive, in 2016:

We connect people. That can be good it they make it positive. Maybe some saves the life of someone on the brink of suicide. So we connect more people negative. Maybe it costs a life by exposing someone to bullies. Maybe some coordinated on our tools. And still we connect people T^{**} ugly truth is that so deeply that anything that allows us to connect T^{**} people more often is mistake, growth tactics are how we calling.

Write a dialogue in what has a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you ask him abought have not become a conversation where you are not bec

- C. This is a area, covering complicated information and a lot of details. Piand find out as much as you can about it.
 - (i) How digital advertising has affected politics
 - (ii) The effect of social media on young people
 - (iii) Better ways of protecting people's privacy

Write/improvise a play based on what you've found out. Try to use a mixtur dialogue; TV interview; and a character who's also a narrator, telling the au

10. Teaching the Truth

A. Collect a list of ways in which important truths are hidden.

Possible areas include: power money land health environment media

Who's doing the hiding, how and why?
What should we know that we're not being told?

Complete the following chart for the characters in this play:

Name	Age	Costume	Approac
Carwyn			
Manjit			
Simon			
Gerald			
Fiona			
Astri			

If you were designing a course to help secondary school pupils check the true what would it include? What do they need to know about? What should the teaching this course, what would actually be happening in the lessons?

B. This is important, but it's also controversial. Not all teachers will agree about parents and pupils will also have different views. Imagine that a school is go and they call a meeting of parents, pupils and teachers to discuss it, to try to

Write/improvise a scene about that meeting.



Notes on Sources

All dated reports are from The Guardian, unless otherwise specified.

1. Think before You Tweet

- The report of the impact of social media on performance comes from
- The England player referred to is Adam Johnson, sentenced in Februa
- The report of Bernardo Silva being fined was 13 November 2019.
- The referee Bobby Madley was removed from the referees' list in Aug
- zzed.uk/11023-1-bobby

In the month after I wrote this scene, there we have further cases of foot social media posts.

2. Kicking the Hahi'

- pry 2 San Marks in Widnes is reported in 'Junk Policy', an article /11023-2-marks
- Neii Woods' book was published in August 2016.

3. Taking back Control

 The original accusations that 34,000 students had cheated were made wrote a number of articles about the impact on individual students in was criticised for its treatment of the students by the National Audit (2) zzed.uk/11023-3-cheating

4. Living with Fear

One of the key sources for this play was this article: zzed.uk/11023-4-8

5. Different Worlds - Next Door

 This draws on articles about the exclusion of social tenants from gard campaigning group organised to fight it: zzed.uk/11023-5-gardens

6. Kicking down the Door

 The London Bridge attack, in which Jack Merritt and Saskia Jones were place on 29 November 2019. Steve Gallant's statement was reported zzed.uk/11023-8-bridge

Since I prepared this material, there have been reports of the Durham rehablown on Channel 4 in *How to Stay Out of Jail* on 18 February 2020: zzed.

7. Picking up the Pieces

This scene draws on a wide removes following the general elections.

8. Taking It Serious

• tcst listing XR as an extremist organisation was reported.

2. 11023-8-attack

9. Changing the World

 The main source for this play was Shoshana Zuboff's monumental bo Capitalism (Profile Books, 2019) – 500 pages but riveting and essential

10. Teaching the Truth

 This was based on a Guardian article in 'The Upside' series, published zzed.uk/11023-10-upside

